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Research Officer ....... Vacant   
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Write to us: 
 

The Secretary 
P O Box 619 

ULLADULLA NSW 2539 
 
 

Email:  secretary@mufhsi.org 
 

Website: http://www.mufhsi.org  
Website contact: Margaret Hope 

 
MEETING DATES 

Meetings of the society are held on the second Sunday of each month at the Community Technology 
Centre, in Room A, Building 3 of the Multipurpose Centre at 82 St Vincent Street, Ulladulla. Visitors and 

new members are very welcome. A small door fee is charged at each meeting to cover catering and 
other costs. 

 
  

Thanks to Shoalhaven City Council for their assistance 
 
 

Disclaimer 
The statements made and views expressed by the contributors in this publication are not necessarily 

those of the Editor or the Milton Ulladulla Family History Society Inc. 
 
 

Cover: Dakotah Mannering’s winning entry of our competition where we asked the pupils of class 4J 
Ulladulla Primary School to design our cover. Refer our story and photo on page 18. 

 
© Milton Ulladulla Family History Society Inc, 2010 
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From the PresidentΩǎ 5Ŝǎƪ 
 
Here we are at the end of the year once again and so much has 
happened during the past six months. 
 
Many of our members participated in making family tree charts 
of the Pioneers of Milton-Ulladulla. Most of the information 
and photographs came from our Pioneer Register which was 
published in 2009. A community member heard of the scheme 
and asked if she too could participate. She created such a wonderful presentation it was voted first 
prize. Sarah Baxter ǿŀǎ ǘƘŜ ǿƛƴƴŜǊ ƻŦ ƻƴŜ ȅŜŀǊΩǎ ǎǳōǎŎǊƛǇǘƛƻƴ ǘƻ ƻǳǊ ǎƻŎƛŜǘȅΦ 
 
Two of our committee members, Sue McMahon and Beth Venning, were asked by Mr. Johnson at 
Ulladulla Primary School to come along and chat to his pupils of 4J about family history. The Pioneer 
Family Tree Charts were taken along to show the children. This aroused great interest with a couple of 
students recognising their ancestors. The pupils were asked if they would like to draw a picture for our 
ƧƻǳǊƴŀƭΩǎ ŦǊƻƴǘ ǇŀƎŜΦ ¢ƘŜ ǊŜǎǳƭǘǎ ǿŜǊŜ ǾŜǊȅ ƛƳǇǊŜǎǎƛǾŜ ŀƴŘ it was difficult for the committee to choose a 
winner. Finally, Dakotah Mannering became the recipient of first prize. 
 
At our August meeting we hosted a very successful open day, inviting the community to introduce them 
to our Society. The Pioneer Charts were displayed and our members contributed to an array of 
interesting memorabilia and research. On the day, Vice President, Allen Nelson presented Sarah 
Donovan and Dakotah Mannering with their prizes. 
 
In September the ACT & NSW Association of Family History Societies Annual Conference was hosted by 
Shoalhaven Family History Society at Bomaderry. Several members attended the Friday History Fair. 
Myself, and four other members also attended the Saturday and Sunday events where we networked 
with other likeminded people, socialising on Saturday evening and increasing our knowledge from the 
ƛƴŦƻǊƳŀǘƛǾŜ ǎǇŜŀƪŜǊΩǎ ǇǊŜǎŜƴǘŀǘƛƻƴǎΦ Lǘ ǿŀǎ ǎǳŎƘ ŀ ǎǳccess we have already booked our accommodation 
for the conference in September 2011 which Inverell District Family History Group will host. 
 
hǳǊ ōŀƴƪ ōŀƭŀƴŎŜ ǿŀǎ ƛƴŎǊŜŀǎŜŘ ōȅ ǘƘŜ .ǳƴƴƛƴƎΩǎ {ŀǳǎage Sizzles held in October and November and I 
would like to thank the volunteers for their support. The Society relies on these fundraising events to 
increase our resources for our members. 
 
We have been lobbying the Shoalhaven City Council to include a Family History Room in the new 
library. Thank you to all members who took the time to send emails and letters to the Council 
supporting our request. 
 
Our financial year and annual subscription date has been changed to 30th June. The current committee 
will continue on until then when a new committee will be elected. 
 
Some of our committee will be stepping down next year, so please think about coming on board. It is a 
very rewarding task and without new blood progress is not possible.  
 
The past year has been a very rewarding one for me and I wish to thank all the members who 
contributed to the success of the year. 
 
Good luck with your research and may I wish you and your families a safe and happy Christmas. 
 
 
Margaret Hope 
President  
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Welcome to new members 

 
We extend the warmest welcome to the most recent additions to the family tree of the Milton Ulladulla 

Family History Society Inc. May their branches be full and bear much fruit. 
 
(10336) Cheryl Stokes, 39 North Street, Ulladulla NSW 2539.   Email: gumboots@aapt.net.au  
(10338) Rita Newman, 188 Green Street, Ulladulla NSW 2539.       Email: ritanewman@internode.on.net 
 
 
 
 
 

 

  

 

 
   1 

 

 

 
                                                 
1
 Extracts from NSW Government Gazettes 

Published by Archive CD Books 

Extracts from New South Wales Government Gazette, 1832 

In 1827 Thomas Kendall entered the timber trade when he 

obtained a land grant of 1,280 acres at Ulladulla, NSW 

which included large stands of cedar at Narrawallee Creek. 

In August 1832, aged 54 years, he was drowned when his 

cutter ñBrisbaneò sank, with all hands on deck, near the 

mouth of the Shoalhaven River. He was taking wood and 

cheese from his farm to market.  

 

mailto:gumboots@aapt.net.au
mailto:ritanewman@internode.on.net
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THE DEADMAN (DEDMAN) FAMILY 
 
This is the history of my Deadman/Dedman ancestors from 
Buckinghamshire, England. 
 
I am descended from Stephen Deadman born 1854, son of Peter 
Deadman and Helen Knifton. Stephen trained as a carpenter, but it was as 
an Able Seaman that he came to Australia.  He appears first in South 
!ǳǎǘǊŀƭƛŀ ƘŀǾƛƴƎ ōŜŜƴ ŘƛǎŎƘŀǊƎŜŘ ŦǊƻƳ ǘƘŜ ǎƘƛǇ άhŘŀƭƛǎƪέ ƻƴ муth 
November 1878.  

 
The Deadman family lived in Dorking for much of the 19th century. The 
patriarch was Peter Deadman, who was born on 13 March 1814 in Crawley, Sussex. He was the tenth of 
eleven children born to John and Ann Dedman/Deadman of Crawley. It is not known exactly when Peter 
moved to Dorking but in the last quarter of 1841, he married Helen Knifton there. Helen was born in 
nearby Maidenhead in 1823.  
 
Helen was the sixth of ten children (three boys and seven girls) of Charles and Fanny Knifton. Charles 
was a House Agent in 1851 by which time he and most of his family had moved north to Sunderland. 
 
Peter and Helen also had a large family, Alice, Harry, Eve (Fanny), Tom, Lucy, Stephen, George, Ann, 
Clara and Sarah. Their first born child was an unnamed female, perhaps dying at birth. 
 

PETER DEADMAN: BOOT & SHOEMAKER 
 
Peter Deadman was a shoemaker and he faced appreciable competition 
since he was one of ten such traders in the town in 1855. Shoemaking was 
a highly skilled trade and like many others, he worked from his home, 
which initially was in Ram Alley, just off the High Street. At that time, the 
boot was the most popular form of footwear for both men and women. 
Favoured styles were the Blucher boot with an open tab front and lacing, 
cloth boots with side lacing, the elastic sided boot, button boot and the 
.ŀƭƳƻǊŀƭΦ ¢ƘŜ ƭŀǘǘŜǊ ǿŀǎ ƴŀƳŜŘ ŀŦǘŜǊ vǳŜŜƴ ±ƛŎǘƻǊƛŀΩǎ Highland home and 
reflected her love of the outdoor life. 
 

DORKING IN 1851 
 
Dorking is an ancient market town in the county of Surrey, 
standing in the valley of the River Mole. It is twenty-nine miles 
south-west of London. 
 
In 1851, Dorking was a prosperous town with its own 
waterworks, gas and light company and paved streets with gas 
street lighting were replacing old dirt roads. 
 
The town population was 3,490 and there was thriving trade especially in flour, corn and lime. The lime 
was dug from the nearby North Downs and processed locally before being transported away by the new 
railways. 
 
Besides a myriad of shops and stores, there was a regular Thursday market held in the High Street - it 
was always well stocked and well patronised. 
 

Peter & Helen Deadman 

A Blucher-style boot 
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Alfred Daniel Burnett Pead Esther Fanny Deadman 

Croydon studio shots of Stephen and Fanny – Circa 1880s 

 

STEPHEN DEADMAN 
 
Stephen is shown here as a young man. He became a cabinet maker but in 
his twenties, he left home and went to Australia. He worked his passage as 
an Able Seaman on board the schooner Odalisk, which arrived in Adelaide on 

26 July 1878. 
 
When his travels took him 
to New South Wales, he 
visited his cousin Sarah 
Thornton nee Deadman, 
who lived at Kelso near 
Bathurst. There he met 
{ŀǊŀƘΩǎ ǎǘŜǇ ŘŀǳƎƘǘŜǊ 
Fanny Esther Barker. 
Stephen & Fanny were married in the Church of 
England in Warren New South Wales on 19th July 
1880. 

 
Their future was then firmly set in Australia although they did visit their family back in England at least 
once.  
 
Stephen continued to work as a seaman and later became bosun of the Odalisk. The couple settled in 
Liverpool, New South Wales and had eleven children, Harry, Helen, Stephen, Adela, Samuel, Bosan, 
Esther, Gertrude, Reginald, Eric and Amy.  
 

ESTHER FANNY DEADMAN 
 
My maternal grandmother Esther Fanny was born 24 July 1889 at the family home, Drummond Street, 
Liverpool, NSW. She trained as a nurse at Royal Prince Alfred Hospital before marrying Alfred Daniel 
Burnett Pead at St. Barnabas Church, Chippendale on 31 August 1913. Alfred was the son of James Pead 
and Eleanor Cunning; he was born 24 May 1888 at Wilson River via Port Macquarie and died 2 July 1919 
from the Spanish Influenza virus. 

 
After her husband's death, Esther was forced to work to support herself & her two children, aged 5 

years & 18 months old. She obtained employment as 
a laundress at Brush Farm, Eastwood where she was 
given board and lodging. This was extremely heavy 
work over long hours six days a week.  
 In the early 1940's she moved to Nowra where she 
was employed to nurse Mrs Glanville who was dying. 
After this lady's death, she stayed on to care for Mr 
Glanville as his housekeeper until his death in 1958. 
She then returned to Sydney to live with family 
members until her death on 20 April 1964 in 
Canterbury Public Hospital, Belmore NSW, age 74 
years. She donated her body to the University of 

NSW for research into Type 1 Diabetes, which was the cause of her death. Her ashes are interred at St. 
Alban's Church of England, Belmore NSW. She never remarried. 2 
  
Submitted by Margaret McIntosh (5240)        
                                                 
2
 Acknowledged contributors: Mona Poole, Martyn Flint, Jenny Thane, Susan Whitting and Mike Pettifor. 



Pigeon House Tidings December 2010 No32 – Milton Ulladulla Family History Society Inc 
 

 7 

The end of Glen Moriston 

Bonnie Prince Charlie - David Cameron British Prime Minister and the 
Glen Moriston Connection 

 
    Prince Charles Edward Stuart  
 
As a child L ƎǊŜǿ ǳǇ ƻƴ ǎǘƻǊƛŜǎ ŦǊƻƳ Ƴȅ bŀƴŀ ŀōƻǳǘ ƻǳǊ ά/ŀƳŜǊƻƴ ŦŀƳƛƭȅ ǿƘƻ ƭƛǾŜŘ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ IƛƎƘƭŀƴŘǎ ƻŦ 
Inverness and saved Bonnie Prince Charlie ς /ƘŀǊƭŜǎ 9ŘǿŀǊŘ {ǘǳŀǊǘΦέ    ²ƘŜƴ L ǎǘŀǊǘŜŘ ǊŜǎŜŀǊŎƘƛƴƎ Ƴȅ 
family history my first project was to discover the details about this family.   Unfortunately, when 
mentioning this ambition to fellow researchers at the family history centre they laughed and 
commented that every family had stories like that, so rather chastened I put that family to one side for 
several years. 
 
When I joined our local family history group during 1993 I took advantage of the Nowra Family History 
Centre monthly opening day for our society members.   I discovered in the Urquhart and Glen Moriston 
parish records that my Cameron family lived at Tom Craskie Farm in the Glen Moriston district of 
Inverness, a northern county of Scotland, in a rather lonely glen close to Loch Ness.   Ewen Cameron 
was a farmer, who was born c1775 at Dores,   on the other side of Loch Ness.   He was a son of 
Alexander Cameron and Katherine Fraser.  The family crossed the loch to settle in the glen and in 1799 
Ewen married Helen McDonnell daughter of Donald McDonnell and Helen Grant, and both the 
McDonnell and Grant families had lived in the glen for many generations ς the McDonnellΩǎ ƻƴ ŀ 
property Livershie (Liversie) in the glen and close to Invermoriston.   

 
By 1804, the couple was settled at Tom Craskie Farm deep in the glen.   
Parish records show the couple had 13 children (ten were sons and three 
daughters) and ran a successfuƭ ŦŀǊƳ ǳƴǘƛƭ 9ǿŜƴΩǎ ŘŜŀǘƘ ƻƴ нтth day of 
February 1842 (as stated in his will), and his widow Helen lived on the farm 
until her death on 18th April 1861.   It was recorded that the   property of 
the estate in 1842 totalled Nineteen hundred and thirty one pounds fifteen 
shillings and six and a half pence.  Records show that Ewen was a 
Tacksman ς ŀ ¢ŀŎƪ ƛǎ ŀ ǘŜƴŀƴŎȅ ƻǊ ŀ ƭŜŀǎŜΣ ǳǎǳŀƭƭȅ ƻŦ ƭŀƴŘΣ ǘƘŜ έǘŀŎƪǎƳŀƴ ƻŦ 
¢ƻƳƻŎǊŀǎƪƛŜ ōŜƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ƭŜŀǎŜƘƻƭŘŜǊ ƻǊ ǘŜƴŀƴǘΦέ     ¢ƘŜ ǘŀŎƪǎƳŀƴ ƛǎ ǳǎǳŀƭƭȅ 
related to the landowner, and had enough money to pay the landowner 
for the lease and then in turn leased the land out to others, so all but those 
at the bottom made a profit.   
 
!ǘ ǘƘŜ ǘƛƳŜ ƻŦ IŜƭŜƴΩǎ ŘŜŀǘƘΣ ŦŀǊƳƛƴƎ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ IƛƎƘƭŀƴŘǎ ǿŀǎ ōŜŎƻƳƛƴƎ ǾŜǊȅ 

difficult and the property was sold.   The sons mostly purchased their own farms in the district apart 
from Duncan the eldest, born 1800 who settled at Demerara, West Indies and Patrick born 1821 who 
became a Free Church Minister at Oban, Argyleshire.   The 3 daughters, Ann born 1806 who married 
John McMillan a Society School Master, Catherine born 1809  and married William Cameron (no 
relation) a farmer of Upper Muckovie, near the moor of Culloden, and a third daughter Helen who died 
young.      
 
 Life took different turns for the sisters.  Ann and her husband were involved in educating the children 
in the remote glens in the area.   It was a difficult occupation ς The Society for the Promotion of 
Christian Knowledge was founded in 1699 and its aim was to enable the poor to read the Bible and be 
humble and industrious.   According to the Scottish Record Office the society erected and maintained 
schools in the Highlands, Islands and remote ŎƻǊƴŜǊǎ ƻŦ {ŎƻǘƭŀƴŘ άǿƘŜǊŜ ǇƻǾŜǊǘy and ignorance did 
much aboǳƴŘΦέ  ¢ƘŜ ŀǾŜǊŀƎŜ ǿŀƎŜ ǿŀǎ ǘƘƛǊǘȅ ǇƻǳƴŘǎ ǇŜǊ ŀƴƴǳƳΣ Ǉƭǳǎ ŀ ƘƻǳǎŜ ŀƴŘ ŎƻŀƭΦ   Lǘ ǿŀǎ ƘƻǇŜŘ 
ǘƘŀǘ ǘƘŜ ƳŀƭŜ ǘŜŀŎƘŜǊ ǿƻǳƭŘ ōŜ ƳŀǊǊƛŜŘ ŀƴŘ Ƙƛǎ ǿƛŦŜ ǿŀǎ ŜȄǇŜŎǘŜŘ ǘƻ ǘŜŀŎƘ ǘƘŜ ƎƛǊƭǎ ǘƘŜ άƘƻǳǎŜƘƻƭŘ 
ŎƘƻǊŜǎέ Ǉƭǳǎ ǎŜǿƛƴƎΦ   ¢ƘŜ {ŎƘƻƻƭ aŀǎǘŜǊ ǘŀǳƎƘǘ DŀŜƭƛŎ ŀƴŘ 9ƴƎƭƛǎƘ and also the scriptures.    
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Cave at Coire Dho 

Teaching in these remote areas was hard, and the children were often kept home to assist on the 
farms, plus during the winter months the snow and treacherous weather also made attending school 
difficult.    
 
 Ann and her husband John and their family migrated to Christchurch, New Zealand on the Regina, 
arriving in December 1859.  The 7th December 1859 edition of the Lyttelton Times records that the 
Regina left Gravesend on 2nd September with a complement of 290 passengers who arǊƛǾŜŘ άƛƴ ŎŀǇƛǘŀƭ 
ƘŜŀƭǘƘ ŀƴŘ ǎǇƛǊƛǘǎέΦ   {ŀŘƭȅΣ ƛǘ ǿŀǎ ǊŜǇƻǊǘŜŘ ǘƘŀǘ άǿƘƛƭǎǘ ŎƭƛƳōƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ .ǊƛŘƭŜ tŀǘƘ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ tƻǊǘ IƛƭƭǎΣ ǘƘŜ 
difficult journey from the port of Lyttelton to Christchurch, one of the passengers, a Mrs King wife of 
Thomas a joiner and mother of 5 children collapsed of apoplexy  due to the extremely hot conditions 
ŀƴŘ ŘƛŜŘ ǎŜǾŜǊŀƭ ƘƻǳǊǎ ƭŀǘŜǊΦέ   ¢ƘŜ aŎaƛƭƭŀƴ ŦŀƳƛƭȅ ǊŜǎƛŘŜŘ ŀǘ IŜŀǘƘŎƻǘŜ ŀǘ ǘƘŜ Ŧƻƻǘ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ tƻǊǘ Iƛƭƭǎ ƻƴ 
the Christchurch side of the hills.   The family story is that John McMillan ǿŀǎ ŀ ǎŎƘƻƻƭ ƳŀǎǘŜǊ ŀǘ ŀ ōƻȅΩǎ 
school until his death on 11th aŀȅ мусрΦ  L ƘŀŘ ŀǎǎǳƳŜŘ ǘƘŀǘ ƛǘ ǿƻǳƭŘ ōŜ ŀ άŎƻƳŦƻǊǘŀōƭŜ ǇǊƛǾŀǘŜ ǎŎƘƻƻƭέΣ 
ōǳǘ ƘŀǾŜ ǊŜŎŜƴǘƭȅ ŘƛǎŎƻǾŜǊŜŘ ǘƘŀǘ ƛǘ ǿŀǎ ŀ ǇǊƛƳƛǘƛǾŜ ǎƭŀō Ƙǳǘ ƛƴ IŜŀǘƘŎƻǘŜ Φ   !ŦǘŜǊ WƻƘƴΩǎ ŘŜŀǘƘ ƛƴ муср 
his wife Ann settled with her elder daughter Ann McKenzie and her family who were farming at 
Woodend, north of Christchurch, until her death on 12th December 1893.   Two other daughters 
married and the youngest child Hughina (my Great Grandmother) was sent to Central Otago to live with 
ƘŜǊ ƳƻǘƘŜǊΩǎ ŎƻǳǎƛƴǎΦ 
 
Hughina had strong memories of her life in Scotland and related these memories to my Nana (her 
younger daughter) who in turn told me about life in the Highlands.  The tale of Bonnie Prince Charles 
always fascinated me, but I could not discover any information about our Cameron connection to the 
Prince.    I found that our society subscribed to a magazine Scots Link, and during 1995 I read with 
ƛƴǘŜǊŜǎǘ ŀƴ ƛǘŜƳ ōȅ .ŀǊǊƛŜ wƻōŜǊǘǎƻƴΣ άwƻŘŜǊƛŎƪ aŀŎƪŜƴȊƛŜΩǎ /ŀƛǊƴέ ŘŜǘŀƛƭƛng the murder in Glen 
Moriston of this man who was thought to have born a strong resemblance of Prince Charles.    With his 
death the Hanoverian army left the glen thinking the Prince was dead, whilst the Prince was still in the 
DƭŜƴ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ŎŀǊŜ ƻŦ ά¢ƘŜ {ŜǾŜƴ aŜƴ ƻŦ DƭŜƴ aƻǊƛǎǘƻƴέΦ  
 
 I wrote to Barrie Robertson asking who were these seven men?  He replied they were:-  
 
   Patrick GRANT tenant of Craskie  (this was Tom Craskie) 
   John MACDONALD alias CAMPBELL) also of Craskie 
   Alexander MACDONALD of nearby Aonach 
   Alexander, Donald and Hugh CHISHOLM sons of Hugh CHISHOLM 
   DǊƛƎƻǊ a!/Dw9Dhw ǿƘƻ ƛǎ ǘƘƻǳƎƘǘ ǘƻ ƘŀǾŜ ŘŜǎŜǊǘŜŘ [ƻǳŘƻƴΩǎ     
   (Campbell) Hanoverian regiment during 1745.    
   
.ŀǊǊƛŜ ŘŜǘŀƛƭŜŘ ǘƘŜ tǊƛƴŎŜΩǎ ǘƛƳŜ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ƎƭŜƴΦ   !ŦǘŜǊ ǘƘŜ ōŀǘǘƭŜ ŀnd loss at Culloden the Prince and his 
friend Glenaladale travelled through to the Glen Moriston.  The English soldiers had already been 
through the glen, murdering any men they came across whether they had had fought for the Prince or 
not, and burning all the crops and houses in the glen.   The women and children were stripped of their 
clothing and food and left to starve in the wilderness.   By 24th July 1746 dressed in rags and starving the 
Prince and Glenadale  came across a small hut with smoke rising from the roof.  The men entered the 
hut to beg for food, and discovered seven men also hiding from the Jacobite armies.   

 
 These men took the Prince and his friend to the caves of Corie 
5Ƙƻ ƘƛƎƘ ŀōƻǾŜ ǘƘŜ ŦŀǊƳ ƻŦ ¢ƻƳ /ǊŀǎƪƛŜΦ  ά¢ƘŜ [ƛŦŜ ŀƴŘ 
Adventures of Prince Charles Edward Stuart by W. Drummond 
ǇǳōƭƛǎƘŜŘ мфлл Ŏƻƴǘŀƛƴǎ о ǇƛŎǘǳǊŜǎ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ άtǊƛƴŎŜΩǎ /ŀǾŜέ /ƻƛǊŜ 
Dho and a picture of the painting by Lockhart Bogle titled 
άtǊƛƴŎŜ /ƘŀǊƭŜǎ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ŎŀǾŜ ŀǘ /ƻƛǊŜ 5ƘƻΣ .ǊŀŜǎ ƻŦ DƭŜƴ 
aƻǊƛǎǘƻƴέ ς the painting is imaginative and depicts the Prince 
with two unknown men.  During September 1746 the Prince was 
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eventually smuggled on board a French Ship at Moidart and rescued, never to return to Scotland.  
 
It was several years later that I discovered from Family Search and Clan Cameron that Patrick Grant was 
an ancestor of my family at Tom Craskie, but it was Helen MacDonnell wife of Ewen Cameron who held 
the link.  A lesson never to assume anything in family history!    
 

    David Cameron British Prime Minister 
 
5ǳǊƛƴƎ Ƴȅ Ƴŀƴȅ ƘƻǳǊǎ ƻŦ ǊŜǎŜŀǊŎƘ ŀƴŘ άDƻƻƎƭƛƴƎέ L ŘƛŘ ŘƛǎŎƻǾŜǊ ƻƴ ²ƛƪƛǇŜŘƛŀ {ƛǊ 9ǿŜƴ /ŀƳŜǊƻƴΣ ǎƻƴ ƻŦ 
William and Catherine (Cameron) Cameron of Upper Muckovie Farm, Culloden.   It is recorded that in 
the previous century Upper Muckovie Farm situated near the Culloden Battlefields was sublet by a pro 
ƎƻǾŜǊƴƳŜƴǘ ƭŀƴŘƭƻǊŘΣ 5ǳƴŎŀƴ CƻǊōŜǎ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ /ŀƳŜǊƻƴΩǎΦ   5ǳǊƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ōŀǘǘƭŜǎ ƻŦ мтпс ǎƛȄ Wŀcobite soldiers 
ǿŜǊŜ ŜȄŜŎǳǘŜŘ ƛƴ ŀ ōŀǊƴ ƻƴ ŀ ŦƛŜƭŘ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ŦŀǊƳΣ ŀƴŘ ǘƘƛǎ ƛǎ ǎǘƛƭƭ ƪƴƻǿƴ ŀǎ 9ƴƎƭƛǎƘƳŜƴΩǎ ŦƛŜƭŘΦ ¢ƘŜ ƛǘŜƳ 
noted that Catherine Cameron was the daughter of Ewen Cameron Tomchrasky, Glen Moriston.  
William was a son of James C. Cameron and MargŀǊŜǘ CƭŜǘŎƘŜǊΦ  ²ƛƪƛǇŜŘƛŀ ƴƻǘŜŘ ǘƘŀǘ ǘƘŜ /ŀƳŜǊƻƴΩǎ 
left the beef farm in 1882.  It detailed the farming family and their elder son Ewen who became an 
accountant and banker and rose to be the London head of the Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking 
Corporation.   He spent many years in banking in China, before returning to London 1890 and was 
knighted in 1901.   This confirmed the family story that my G. Grandmother Hughina McMillan did have 
a first cousin who was knighted, and that the New Zealand family kept in touch with their Scottish 
cousins until into the next century.    The last paragraph notes that David Cameron leader of the British 
Conservative party was a descendant of the family.   
 
 How lucky for me as I have been able to confirm a great deal of my early research from background 
ƛƴŦƻǊƳŀǘƛƻƴ ŀōƻǳǘ 5ŀǾƛŘ /ŀƳŜǊƻƴΦ   IƻǿŜǾŜǊΣ ŀƴ ŀǊǘƛŎƭŜ ƛƴ ά¢ƘŜ aŀƛƭ ƻƴ {ǳƴŘŀȅέ ǊŜǾŜŀƭǎ Ƙƻǿ Ƙƛǎ ŦŀƳƛƭȅ 
farming Upper Muckovie Farm just three miles from the battlefield are thought to have supported the 
British Hanoverian Army.   Lǘ ƛǎ ǇƻǎǎƛōƭŜ ǘƘŀǘ ƭƛǘǘƭŜ ƛǎ ƪƴƻǿƴ ƻŦ Ƙƛǎ άƻǘƘŜǊέ /ŀƳŜǊƻƴ ŦŀƳƛƭȅΦ 
 
hƴŎŜ ŀƎŀƛƴΣ L ƘŀǾŜ ǇǊƻǾŜŘ ǘƘŀǘ άŦŀƳƛƭȅ ǎǘƻǊȅέ ŘƻŜǎ ƘŀǾŜ ŀ ƭƛǘǘƭŜ ǘǊǳǘƘ ƛƴ ƛǘΣ ŀƴŘ ƛǘ ƛǎ ǿƻǊǘƘ ǇǳǊǎǳƛƴƎ ǘƻ 
sort truth from myth. 
  
With thanks to   Clan Cameron, Australia 
                               Barrie Robertson, Staffordshire 
    Moriston Matters 
 
  
Submitted by Gloria Wilks (5220) 
 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

{ŎƻǘƭŀƴŘΩǎ bŜǿ ¢ŀǊǘŀƴ wŜƎƛǎǘŜǊΦ  
The Scottish Register of Tartan Act was launched by the National Archives of Scotland on 
February 5th 2009. Data from the two existing private registers, the Scottish Tartans Authority 
and the Scottish World Register, have been amalgamated in the new register. The register will 
be maintained by the National Archives to provide a focal point for Tartan design and 
production. Tartan experts will have roles to play in advising and supporting the Register. 
It will provide users with the opportunity to search the data base for Tartans already recorded 
and will also provide the criteria required by the Tartans Act. 
It will protect the status of registered Tartans as well as providing genealogical research. 
As Tartans play an important role in the culture and identity of Scots, it was fitting that the 
new register began in the Year of the Homecoming 2009. 
Source: June Marks, Kith & Kin Journal – September 2010 

 
The official website of the register is http://www.tartanregister.gov.uk/ 
 
 

http://www.tartanregister.gov.uk/
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THE HEYCOX FAMILY ς A LONG HISTORY OF TIMBER WORKERS. 

 

The first Heycox/Hicox/Hickox to arrive in the Milton Ulladulla district was Charles. He was born 1815 at 
Alverstokes, England. Charles was convicted of housebreaking and sent to our shores for seven years on 
ōƻŀǊŘ ǘƘŜ άIƻƻƎƘƭŜȅέ ƛƴ муоп ŀƎŜŘ нл ȅŜŀǊǎΦ Iƛǎ ǘǊŀŘŜ ǿŀǎ a Sawyer. In 1835 he was assigned to James 
McLeay. 

Charles received his ticket of leave on 11 February 1841. By 2 June 1841 he was a free man. He stayed 
in the district and married Ann Dunn on 16 August 1848 and they started their family. Their first born 
was Emma in 1849 then Edward 1851, Charles 1853 and George 1857. The family moved to Nelligen, on 
ǘƘŜ /ƭȅŘŜ wƛǾŜǊΣ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ƳƛŘ муслΩǎ ǿƘŜƴ /ƘŀǊƭŜǎ ōŜŎŀƳŜ ŀ ŦŀǊƳŜǊ ōǳǘ he 
continued in the timber industry. Ann was a midwife from 1868 to 1870 
when she delivered six babies. During 1872 Ann became ill and was 
admitted to Parramatta Hospital where she died some weeks later aged 
45 years. Charles died in 1873 at Nelligen and is laid to rest in Nelligen 
cemetery, he was 60 years old. 

The three eldest children moved on ς Emma went to live in the Manning 
River region, Edward and Charles both moved to Braidwood but Charles 
later moved to Wollongong. George stayed in the Nelligen/Brooman 
district all his life. 

George married Emma Smith at Ulladulla in 1881. They had fourteen 
children who were all born at Currawan. Currawan Creek flows into the 
Clyde River. George eked out a living as a timber getter and farmer and 
many of his children stayed around the Nelligen district and also worked 
in the timber industry. 

 

Their son William (Bill) married Henrietta Wales in 1909 at Wollongong and they too had fourteen 
children, of which most were born in the Wollongong district. William cut and carted timber for the 

Wollongong mines. His family moved back down to Brooman, 
which is 25klms south west of Milton, when he and his sons cut 
and supplied timber to the Brooman mill later working as 
employees of the mill where his grandsons were later 
employed. In his later years, William ƳƻǾŜŘ ǘƻ Ƙƛǎ ŘŀǳƎƘǘŜǊΩǎ 
residence at Bulli. Many of the Heycox family were tragically 
killed cutting down trees or milling them up. .ƛƭƭΩǎ ǎƻƴǎ ŀƴŘ 
grandsons continued working at the Brooman mill until it was 
destroyed by fire about 1966. Heycox descendants still live in 
the district today. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Submitted by Margaret Magnusson (10335)  

 

Hetti & Bill Heycox – about 1950 

Emma & George Heycox at 
their home at 

Currowan Creek near Nelligen. 
Taken about 1930 

 

 

 
Google Map showing  
Nelligen & Currowan, NSW 
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Our Members were asked to submit a story on what they would like to ask their ancestor/s. 
The winners were published in December 2009 journal. Other entries are published below. 
Thanks to the entries we are able to appreciate the information that a family historian is able 
to unearth and also realise the trials and tribulations our forebears suffered. Thank you to all 
entrants for permission to publish their submissions. 
 
Entry by Marie Bishop ( 5224) 
 
Knock, knock! Great three times grandfather ς I wish to come into your life for a visit and to ask you 
many things about your origins. About your family ς both before and after your marriage ς and how it 
came about that you were tempted to try to steal property belonging to another person on the 14th 
December, 1795 at Spitalfields, England. Inquisitive granddaughter that I am but please bear with me as 
I, in turn, am being quizzed by one of my own teenagers eager to learn about her ancestors. 
 
WHAT I ALREADY KNOW: On 13th WŀƴǳŀǊȅΣ мтфс ȅƻǳ ǿƛǘƘ ŀŎŎƻƳǇƭƛŎŜǎΣ ǿŜǊŜ ǘǊƛŜŘ ŀǘ [ƻƴŘƻƴΩǎ /ŜƴǘǊŀƭ 
Criminal Court ς The Old Bailey for theft/grand larceny and theft/animal theft. You were then twenty 
one years of age. Convicted of the grand larceny but not the second charge and were sentenced to 
transportation for 7 years ς ǘƻ ōŜ ΨŦǊŜŜŘ ōȅ ǎŜǊǾƛǘǳŘŜΩΦ ¸ƻǳ ǿŜǊŜ ǎƘƛǇǇŜŘ ǘƻ {ȅŘƴŜȅ ¢ƻǿƴ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ ǎƘƛǇ 
άDŀƴƎŜǎέ ŀƴŘ ŀǊǊƛǾŜŘ ƻƴ тth WǳƴŜΣ мтфтΦ ¸ƻǳǊ ǿƛŦŜ ŎŀƳŜ ΨŦǊŜŜΩ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ ǎŀƳŜ ǎƘƛǇ ǿƛǘƘ ȅƻǳΦ ²Ƙŀǘ ŀ 
woman! So brave and obviously loved you dearly. 
 
HERE THE QUESTIONS BEGIN: Once in Sydney Town where were you sent? Did your wife Elizabeth go 
with you? What were your tasks? What were the tasks of your wife? I believe you were a wheelwright 
and would have been very much in demand in the new colony. Bearing in mind the First Fleet had 
arrived only nine years earlier. Apparently, you had at least six children but I do not have the dates of all 
their births yet. 
 
Where did you settle when you were free? 
 
Grandfather, how did you become involved in the theft you were charged with? You and your two 
companions were very daring (or maybe desperate!) to expect to get away with such a heist. 
Approximately twelve hundred English pounds worth! My reason for asking is that you apparently had 
some Christian beliefs as you had your children christened by the famous (perhaps notorious!!) 
wŜǾŜǊŜƴŘ ƻŦ {ǘΦ WƻƘƴΩǎ /ƘǳǊŎƘΣ tŀǊǊŀƳŀǘǘŀΦ 
 
No doubt you had some regrets about your earlier wrongdoings and were walking a new path, setting a 
better example for your descendants. You may rest assured they turned out very well. They became 
honest, hardworking and decent citizens and assets to their communities. 
 
Now then grandfather, as I have a busy time ahead looking for the answers to many questions and 
getting to know you and yours (mine also) better, it is time to say adieu! Until we meet again. 
With much affection, your eldest grandchild from the sixth generation. 
 

 

Memberôs submissions to ñAsk an Ancestorò competition.  
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Entry by Beth Venning (7271) 
 
My grandmother donated her body to the University of Sydney. They kept if for one year, and then 
released if for cremation. I obtained her death certificate hoping it would tell me the story, but it only 
provided more questions than answers. 
My grandmother was little and stooped, I only have fleeting memories of her as she died when I was 
only 4 years of age. Those memories could be just stories told to me or actual memories or just my 
fantasies looking at her photos. 
But stooped she was, I believe ǘƘŜȅ ǳǎŜŘ ǘƻ Ŏŀƭƭ ƛǘ ŀ ΨǿƛŘƻǿǎ ƘǳƳǇΩ ƻƴ ƘŜǊ ōŀŎƪΦ aȅ ƳƻǘƘŜǊ ǎǘŀǊǘŜŘ ǘƻ 
get the same thing before she died, and I am very conscious of it in myself. She also suffered from 
nephritis, a kidney disorder. 
As she died in 1953 it was an amazing thing to donate your body to science. I wonder why and how she 
made that decision. What information and from where did she get it, to arrive at such a course of 
action. It must have been so hard for my mother and her sƛōƭƛƴƎǎ ǘƻ ƘŀǾŜ ƴƻ ΨōƻŘȅΩ ǘƻ ōǳǊȅ ƻǊ ŎǊŜƳŀǘŜΦ 
Their grieving must have been so empty.  
So Alice, where to start? 
Did you consult a doctor about this decision? We had a family doctor who lived on the corner of our 
street; you attended him, as did my mother (your daughter). My brothers and I were bought into this 
world in his hands. My father seems to think he had some influence over your decision and may even 
have referred you to the University. He thinks they may have sent someone to interview you. 
Alice, what upset you so much about your ΨƘǳƳǇΩ ǘƘŀǘ ȅƻǳ ǿƻǳƭŘ ŘŜƴȅ ȅƻǳǊ ŦŀƳƛƭȅ ŀ ǇǊƻǇŜǊ ōǳǊƛŀƭΚ 
Did you think one of your daughters or granddaughters may also inherit this physical appearance and 
that by offering yourself for experimentation you may save them from such a fate? 
I can only believe that was your intention. I have a small thank you card obviously prepared by the 
family to thank all those who expressed sympathy on your passing. But that is not a satisfactory 
memorial to you, is it? 
Alice, you had such a hard life, you were poor, you never owned a house, all your clothes were 
homemade or hand me downs, and probably food may have been scarce. So why at the end did you not 
let yourself rest in peace? 
I think that you were an incredibly brave person. I am sǳǊŜ ȅƻǳ ǿƻǳƭŘ ǎŀȅ άbƻΗ !ǘ ǘƘŜ ŜƴŘ ƻŦ Ƴȅ ƭƛŦŜ L 
ǿƛƭƭ ƪƴƻǿ ƴƻǘƘƛƴƎ ŀōƻǳǘ ǿƘŀǘ ƎƻŜǎ ƻƴ ŀƴŘ ǎƻƳŜ ƎƻƻŘ ǿƛƭƭ ŎƻƳŜ ƻŦ ƛǘ ŀƭƭΦέ 
I can only assume good did come of it. You do not see many women these days witƘ ΨǿƛŘƻǿǎΩ ƘǳƳǇǎΩΦ 
Science has gone ahead in leaps and bounds in our modern years, and many of us have been cured of 
diseases that one hundred years ago we would have died from. 
The other thought is that maybe you or your family received some monetary compensation for your 
deed and this helped your family in some way, or that by doing this your family did not have to pay for 
your funeral? That would have been a truly selfless decision if that was the case. But talking to surviving 
family I do not think this ever occurred or was a consideration in your decision. 
Your death certificate states: Date of Burial ς 30 September 1953 aged 71 years; delivered to the 
Medical School, University of Sydney; Undertakers ς Wood Coffill Limited; and witnesses Horace Joseph 
Mercer and A James; buried 19 October 1954 Church of England Cemetery Rookwood. 
I have searched our Societies CD of the Rookwood Cemetery records but can find no reference to you. I 
have looked on the internet but the Anglican Section of Rookwood is not yet available to search for 
names. So, Alice, it looks like I will have to take a trip to Rookwood myself, like any good family history 
researcher would and should do. 
One day I may be able to find your last resting place and perhaps visit and pay my respect. 
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Entry by Margaret Osmond (7171) 
 

 
Please ς Just One Clue!!! 
As anyone who indulges in the past-time of family history and the research that accompanies it, knows 
that frustration is a common occurrence. You get so far and then that great brick wall appears and no 
matter which way you turn the wall appears in front of you. 
I have walked into this wall many times and with determination and perseverance occasionally I find a 
way around it. However, one such brick wall which remains a constant thorn in my side concerns my 
ƘǳǎōŀƴŘΩǎ ƎǊŜŀǘ ƎǊŜŀǘ ƎǊŀƴŘŦŀǘƘŜǊΦ L Ƙŀve even resorted, twice so far, to visiting a certain grave in the 
Mays Hill Cemetery at Parramatta and pleading with the occupier to give me one small sign which will 
send me on the right road around this wall, thus enabling the story to be completed. 
Hello Bute, it is so nice to meet you. I have documented your life from the age of 18 in Scotland until 
your death in Parramatta, Sydney in 1852 at the age of 56. My frustration and intrigue centres around 
the family prior to the marriage of your parents in Scotland and your admittance to the Edinburgh 
University aged 18 to study medicine and eventually becoming one of the first medical doctors 
registered in New South Wales in the 1840’s. 
Thanks to your descendants in Scotland, a valuable and comprehensive family tree was received which 
documented your family back to Robert the Bruce in Scotland and we know with certainty that you are 
from this direct line, albeit from an illegitimate son of this Scottish Royal. 
The answer to just a few questions would be a great help! I know that your parents were both married 
previously and their spouses had died and you have step brothers and sisters. I also know that you are 
the youngest of four children but can you please tell me when and where you were all born – obviously 
in Scotland but no clue can be found. Until the death of your mother Mary in 1823 the whereabouts of 
your family is a mystery, other than the fact that your father James had died in 1807 when you were 
about 10 years of age., although that is only a guess. The date and place of your parent’s marriage is 
another question so far unanswered. 
From what I can gather, regarding your mother’s last will and testament, you were a bit of a worry, 
especially when it came to your finances. Why did she advance you money during the years before her 
death? I read between the lines that your relationship with brothers George and Ogilvie was not the 
best – did you not toe the line? Another question – what did you do with your share of the “Silver Plate” 
given to you by your mother – did you sell that off for extra cash? And why? You were obviously the 
‘black sheep’ considering the family treasures willed to your eldest brother George by your mother and 
were eventually willed to your eldest son William, so you were obviously ‘on the outer’ for some good 
reason. 
I know you married in 1815 – is this one reason why you needed financial help? Was it perhaps that 
times were difficult when your wife Lillias died in 1824, leaving you with 3 very young children to care 
for? When your second wife died in 1833, after only 5 years marriage and 3 more children, life must 
have been very trying and I do understand the pressures you must have been under. 
Why did you decide to travel to Australia on your own in 1834, leaving these children in care in England? 
Did you feel alone and unable to cope? Your own voyage to a new life has been documented but there is 
no information regarding your children’s life until late in the 1840’s when they appear in New South 
Waled, some living with you for a time. 
Please, just one of two clues will help immensely – then your story can be completed. Don’t be ashamed 
of your past demeanours, whatever they may be –we all have a small cross to bear and you will 
certainly not be judged by me. 
Thank you Bute – please consider my questions and I will be waiting in anticipation for your answers, or 
at least a clue or two which will help your life’s story to be completed. 
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Entry by Sue McMahon (5236) 
 
The Lost Years. 
 
 
There was a world war raging. By 1915 British regiments were already losing thousands of troops in 
fierce battles. By 1915 the Australian and New Zealand Forces had been defeated at Gallipoli. 
The British Government decided to introduce conscription (compulsory enrolment) in 1916 because of 
the heavy losses in most battles. At first only single men were called up by the end of the war even 50 
years old men were being conscripted. 
 
In 1916 my grandfather, born in England in 1890 decided to migrate to Australia. He travelled on the 
άOrontesέ ŦǊƻƳ ǘƘŜ hrient steamship line, leaving the Port of London on 27th January 1916 bound for 
Australia, with his younger sister Lilian and her young beau Albert. They arrived in Sydney Australia a 
few months later. The ship was then immediately sent to war as a troop carrier. The passenger list 
names his profession as fitter and his country of last permanent residence as British Possession, not 
England, Wales, Scotland or Ireland. 
 
Grandpa, Arthur John or Jack as everyone called him, then went quickly to country NSW. He found work 
sinking bores on rural properties until just after the war. In 1918 he joined the Australian Navy as an 
engine room artificer, and then was a sub mariner until his discharge in 1947. 
In the 1901 census, Arthur John appears as an eleven year old student, the eldest of five or six siblings. 
He had the same name as his father. 
 
From then on there seems to be no record of him until 1916 when his name is on the passenger list 
bound for Australia. Where was he during these years? What was he doing? In 1916 he would have 
reached the age of twenty six. How can a healthy 26 year old leave a country in the middle of a war, 
travel to an allied country and just three years later join their navy? 
Many questions start manifesting themselves! Was he trying to escape and if so what was he trying to 
escape from? What work did he do until he left England? Was he married/divorced? Is there another 
family over there who know nothing about their Australian relatives? 
How to find out? From the 1911 census I might be able to find out where he lived, possibly who with 
and maybe his occupation but if his residence was on a British Possession he would not appear on the 
records. 
 
I thought I knew my grandfather. As the eldest grandchild I spent many school holidays with him, 
talking about his navy days, visiting the submarine base at Neutral Bay, climbing through visiting 
submarines, listening to horse racing on the radio and watching boxing and wrestling on the TV, all of 
which he was very passionate about. 
 
However he talked rarely about his life in England, definitely never about the mysterious lost years 
between 1901 and 1916. 
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Vale: Peggy Mae LIGHT. 19 May 1931 ς 17 August 2010 
 

Although Peg Light was not a member of our Society she was a friend who 
deserves mention in our magazine due to her kindness she endowed upon 
our members. Peg was a lifelong friend to a past life member of our 
SƻŎƛŜǘȅ wƻƳŀ wƻōōƛƴǎ ǿƘƻ ǇŀǎǎŜŘ ŀǿŀȅ ƛƴ нллрΦ !ŦǘŜǊ wƻƳŀΩǎ ŘŜŀǘƘ tŜƎ 
continued to support us. Peg will be sadly missed. 
 
The following tribute was read at her funeral by Angela Rae, President of 
the Ulladulla and Districts Garden Club. 
 
I was asked by Peg’s son Hugh who lives on a farm in Rosedale in the 
Gippsland area of Victoria to give him an insight on what his mother had 
been involved in during the past twenty years or so – he added that he 
always knew his mother was very happy in her retirement years and had 
always kept herself very occupied. 
 
He related to me that Peg grew up in the North Sydney area. 

 
Later when married they built a house on a block of land at Castle Craig but later Peg’s husband was 
transferred to Melbourne. 
 
Peg was a working mother and held some very prestigious jobs in the Education Department, the later 
one being assistant to the commissioner of Department of Equal Opportunity. 
During her time in Melbourne Peg became a follower of Aussie Rules Football supporting St Kilda – and 
had been a ‘St Kilda fan’ for many years, always letting friends know when they had a win! 
In her retirement Peg chose to move to Mollymook some twenty odd years ago. 
 
She had a love of gardening and joined the Garden Club in 1988. 
 
Becoming very much involved with events such as Open Gardens, The Living Craft Exhibitions in which 
the Garden Club held displays and the floats for Blessing of the Fleet Parades. 
 
Having served on the committee of the Garden Club for the past eight years – I had quite a lot to do with 
Peg who was one of the quiet achievers and was always there to volunteer as and when needed. 
In recent years she held the positions of welcoming officer and health and welfare officer and I am sure 
that there are many of you here today that would have received a most welcome ‘get well wish’ from 
our Peg. 
 
In those earlier years she served on the executive committee in the roles of: treasurer, secretary and 
publicity which involved monthly inserts in the newspaper and publishing the newsletters which of 
course was not an easy task with only a typewriter to rely on. 
 
But Peg’s dedication did not stop there – often on our meeting day after the meeting Peg was seen to be 
rushing off to her Writers Group held at Kendall Cottage. 
 
Each Monday a group of about eighteen members meet and this was indeed Peg’s forte having excellent 
writing skills. 
 
Peg wrote an auto biography, Stand on Left, Walk on Right, which was published and her very good 
friend Pat Gollan organised a book launch in her home. 
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I am told Peg’s lifelong friend Roma Robbins (deceased) encouraged her to join her at the Family History 
Group, although not a member she was invited to judge Club Competitions one of which was titled ‘Ask 
an Ancestor’ where members were asked to pretend to ask pertinent questions on information lost in 
time. 
 
Joanne Ewin tells me she was awarded first prize for her article.  
 
Unfortunately due to ill health Peg had to forgo some of her interests which were Greg Orphin’s walking 
group, the Croquet Club and Mollymook and Ulladulla Combined Probus. 
 
Past president Roy Bryant at the Croquet Club couldn’t say enough about the excellent job Peg had done 
in handling the publicity attracting many new members. 
 
Although – when she had to reduce her membership to a social one and was unable to play the game, 
she would volunteer to sell raffle tickets etc to support the club. 
 
At Probus she was a foundation member thoroughly enjoying many trips to places of interest especially 
Queensland. 
 
Many of Peg’s Probus friends were disappointed they could not attend today as they departed early this 
morning on a planned coach trip. 
 
So you can see Peg was a very special lady and was held in very high regard in this close knit community. 
 
So when you are coming down the hill from Mollymook into Ulladulla Harbour and you see the sign 
Arcadia Twin Cinema’s think of Peg as in 1992 she entered a competition to name the new complex 
‘Arcadia’ which was named after the Arcadia at Chatswood. 
 
Peg won free admission to the cinema for a year. 
 

I feel honoured to say that I knew Peg Light – a gracious lady. 
 

May She Rest in Peace. 
 

 
  
 

Were any of your ancestors buried at Old Balmain Cemetery? 
 

Central Coast Family History volunteers are reconstructing the index for Balmain Cemetery as the 
original has many errors. In the process names are checked on NSW birth, death and marriage 

indexes for clarification, finally browsing death and funeral notices in the Sydney Morning Herald and 
other references they can find. 

They are appealing for information from death certificates. 
If you have any Balmain Cemetery information or death certificates, then please send a message via 

Central Coast FHS web page:  http://www.centralcoastfhs.org.au/contact/index.html 
 

If all goes to plan the finished product will be available on CD in 2011. 

http://www.centralcoastfhs.org.au/contact/index.html
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The Internet is just a resource, but not do-all genealogy tool. 

The Internet has drastically changed how genealogy research is done. The amount of information 
posted on the Internet is increasing at an amazing pace every day. The ads might say you can find 
your complete family history by searching a Web site, but even though the Internet has billions and 
billions of pages filled with information, not everything is on the Internet.  

When I started my research more than 30 years ago, I used a notebook, handwritten pedigree charts, 
Family Group Sheets and a binder for storing my information. I relied heavily on printed publications 
for methodology and geographic information, and spent hours looking at records on microfilm at 
libraries and archives.  

Today, the Internet has made it easier and more convenient to research records such as censuses, 
passenger lists and newspapers. Ancestry, Footnote, FamilySearch and the National Archives are just 
a few of the thousands of sites that contain genealogical data. Some of the information is free and 
some is on paid subscription sites.  

Although these sites have millions of records, they represent only a fraction of the records that have 
been preserved over the centuries of human record keeping. If only the Internet is used to collect 
information, the majority of family history will be missed or recorded incorrectly.  

The Internet has made genealogy information more accessible to millions of people. With only a 
minimum amount of data, most people are able to get a quick start on their genealogy by using the 
Internet. It is an important part of any good research plan.  

You must go beyond the Internet to find some records. Courthouse records, such as deeds, wills, 
probates and tax records, are just some of the records that are still not readily available on the 
Internet. Many of the indexes are online, but the digitized records are less likely to be there. These 
records need to be accessed through the facilities where they are stored or through microfilmed 
copies.  

It would be impossible to give a list of what genealogy information can be found on the Internet 
because it is changing so rapidly. There are guides, indexes, books, maps and digitized documents. 
These items might be found on a site dedicated to genealogy, or they might not be associated with 
genealogy at all. The Internet will help with genealogy research and should be utilized whenever the 
information is available. But the Internet is one source for information, not the only source.  

The misconception that all genealogy information can be found on the Internet continues to persist. 
Some Internet sites proclaim that everything needed for genealogy research is on their site. Many of 
these sites are official looking and appear to be run by experts. Do not be fooled into believing the 
claims.  

The Internet is definitely a powerful tool for genealogical research. Checking online for information is 
part of a good research strategy. Just don`t expect to find everything there.3  

Julie Miller is a certified genealogist. She is a genealogy researcher, lecturer, and award-winning 
writer. 

                                                 

3
 Source: http://www.broomfieldenterprise.com/ci_15379828 

 

http://www.broomfieldenterprise.com/ci_15379828
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Above: Dakotah Mannering 
& 

Vice President, Allen Nelson 

Above: Travis Woodens with 
Vice President, Allen Nelson. 

Right: Arthur Wallace 

FAMILY HISTORY WEEK ς YOUNG AND OLD ATTEND OPEN DAY AT MUFHSI 
 
Milton Ulladulla Family History Society members were pleased with the large 
numbers of friends and visitors who attended the Open Day exhibition on 
Sunday, 8 August. Family historians, Ken and Gwen Knox, had arranged for 16 
members of the pioneer Cork family to be present, including 92 year old Arthur 
Wallace, whose mother was Amy Cork.  

 
 

There was also an opportunity to present to 
Dakotah Mannering from Class 4J at 
¦ƭƭŀŘǳƭƭŀ tǳōƭƛŎ {ŎƘƻƻƭ ǘƘŜ ǇǊƛȊŜ ǎƘŜ ƘŀŘ ǿƻƴΣ ŀ ōƻƻƪ ŎŀƭƭŜŘ ά!ƭƭ 
!ōƻǳǘ aŜέ ƛƴ ǿƘƛŎƘ ǎƘŜ ŎƻǳƭŘ ǊŜŎƻǊŘ ƘŜǊ ŦŀƳƛƭȅ ƘƛǎǘƻǊȅ ŀƴŘ 
which had been donated by president Margaret Hope. Dakotah 
was one of the children who entered a competition to design a 
cover for the {ƻŎƛŜǘȅΩǎ tƛƎŜƻƴ IƻǳǎŜ ¢ƛŘƛƴƎǎΦ ό{ŜŜ ŦǊƻƴǘ ŎƻǾŜǊύΦ 
 
 
 
Another young student, Travis 
Woodens, was astute enough to 

recognize that the Millard family 
tree which had been made by society member David Weaver, was 
about his Millard family and so he was presented with same. 
 
These students were in a class to whom MUFHSI members Sue 
McMahon and Beth Venning had made a presentation about family 
history which was very well received by all the students. 
 
Many other pioneer descendants were very happy to take home the 
family trees which had been prepared by the society members for 
aƛƭǘƻƴΩǎ мрлth anniversary year. 
 
Society members had voted a prize of a complimentary membership for the best display to Sarah 
Baxter who had prepared an outstanding tree for the Donovan family.  
 
¢ƘŜǊŜ ǿŜǊŜ ŀƭǎƻ ŘƛǎǇƭŀȅǎ ŦǊƻƳ ƳŜƳōŜǊǎ ƻŦ ¦ƭƭŀŘǳƭƭŀΩǎ IƛǎǘƻǊƛŎŀƭ {ƻŎƛŜǘȅ ǎǳŎƘ ŀǎ WŜŀƴ IƛƭƭΩǎ ƘƛǎǘƻǊƛŎ 
pottery, and the Milton Ulladulla Time Capsule was on display.   
 
A great sausage sandwich BBQ was enjoyed by many and the day ended with donated raffle prizes 
going to David Weaver (framed tapestry), Karen Gardiner (coat hangers and a $5 transcription 
discount), Allen Nelson (hand towels), Joanne Ewin (silk art), Lynette Johnston (Joy Murrin 
transcription voucher), Kevin Cole (Caltex card and hand towels), Sue Hackett (hand towels), Jan 
Cussens ($5 transcription discount voucher), Meg Hammond (grocery hamper), Christine Moss ($5 
transcription discount voucher), Ann Stevens and Peter Stevens (from Orange) (coat hangers and a 
Coles voucher), John Williams (kitchen towels), Tracey McKay (two $5 transcription discount 
vouchers), Marie Bishop (kitchen towels) and  Marlene Ross (hand towels). 
 
It was very interesting to see the many ways that people had recorded and displayed their family 
history. 
 
Thanks to all entrants who participated and made the day such a wonderful success. 
 
Written by Jan Sullivan ς Publicity Officer - MUFHSI 
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ESSENTIAL INFORMATION  
What to do with your family history research.4 

 

 

1. Turn your piles of paperwork into a book ς otherwise your surviving relatives might just 
throw them away! 

2. Add a clause to your will ς directing your executor to find a good home for your research 
work. 

3. Feel like a novice at writing? ς ²Ƙȅ ƴƻǘ Ƨƻƛƴ ŀ ǿǊƛǘŜǊǎΩ ƎǊƻǳǇ ŦƻǊ ǘƘŜ ǇǊŀŎǘƛŎŜ ŀƴŘ 
encouragement it will give you. 

4. Choose a recording style which suits you ς there are a wide variety of styles to choose from. 
¢ƘŜ Ψ!ƭƛŎŜ ƛƴ ²ƻƴŘŜǊƭŀƴŘΩ ŎƻƴŎŜǇǘ ƻŦ ΨŦŀƭƭƛƴƎ down a rabbit hole’, like Alice, we sometimes 
come across the unexpected. Learn not to waste the additional material you locate while 
researching your family history i.e. the history of houses, villages, people, unusual events, 
work skills etc. All these areas (i.e. rabbit holes) can be incorporated into your research ς or 
they can become the material for an entirely new publication. 

5. Which printer/publisher shall I use? i.e. upgrade your practical and computer skills to be 
able to print your own limited edition books. 

6. Draw a line ς take a risk and start writing! We would all like to make further research 
discoveries, but at some point we must draw a line under our current research and start 
writing. 

7. Two important points ς fact and interest ς you must gather accurate facts but you must also 
learn to make your results interesting to others. 

8. Remember to write for your great-grandchildren ς ǊŜƳŜƳōŜǊ ǘƻ ŎŀǊŜŦǳƭƭȅ ŜȄǇƭŀƛƴ ΨthingsΩ 
and even quite simple events, which may otherwise seem like a foreign language to your 
future great-grandchildren. You are writing for posterity, remember! 

9. We need to respect copyright ς Remember to list the sources of your work and give 
adequate acknowledgement of quotes, photos, ideas, snatches of conversation ς and the 
work of other researchers etc. And doƴΩǘ ŦƻǊƎŜǘ ǘƻ ƛƴŎƭǳŘŜ ŀƴ ƛƴŘŜȄΣ ŜǎǇŜŎƛŀƭƭȅ ƛƴ ŀ ƭŀǊƎŜǊ 
book. 

10. A suggested disclaimer for family history material: ‘This family history has been written 
based on information provided to the author by third parties and from records and other 
documents that have been prepared by third parties. While the author has used his/her best 
endeavours to produce an accurate account of the history of this family, the author does not 
warrant or make any claim as to the veracity, accuracy or otherwise of the information 
contained in the work, and accepts no responsibility whatsoever in the event of any 
inaccurate information having been contained or included in the work.’ 

11. Let someone else look over your shoulder! Have your work checked by a friend who will 
reliably, objectiǾŜƭȅ ŀƴŘ ǎŜƴǎƛōƭȅ ŎǊƛǘƛǉǳŜ ȅƻǳǊ ǿƻǊƪ ǎƻ ǘƘŀǘ ȅƻǳ Ŏŀƴ ƛƳǇǊƻǾŜ ƛǘΦ !ƴŘ ŘƻƴΩǘ 
forget the need for proof-reading and spell-checking by humans rather than by your 
computer! 
 

                                                 

4
 ¢ƘŜ ŀōƻǾŜ ƛƴŦƻǊƳŀǘƛƻƴ ǿŀǎ ǎƻǳǊŎŜŘ ŦǊƻƳ ΨThe Cedar Log Journal of Richmond-Tweed Family History Society Inc; Issue No: 105, 

September 2010, page 8.’ 
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What is Google Books? 
Search the full text of books to find ones that interest you and learn where to buy or borrow them. 

How does Google Books work? 
Book Search works just like web search: Try a search on Google Books or on Google.com. When we 
find a book whose content contains a match for your search terms, we'll link to it in your search 
results. Clicking on a book result, you'll be able to see everything from a few short excerpts to the 
entire book, depending on a few different factors.  

What can I view?  
Each book includes an 'About this book' page with basic bibliographic data like title, author, 
publication date, length and subject. For some books you may also see additional information like 
key terms and phrases, references to the book from scholarly publications or other books, chapter 
titles and a list of related books. For every book, you'll see links directing you to bookstores where 
you can buy the book and libraries where you can borrow it. 

Full view: If we've determined that a book is out of copyright, or the publisher or rightsholder has 
given us permission, you'll be able to page through the entire book from start to finish, as many 
times as you like. If the book is in the public domain, you'll also be able to download, save and print a 
PDF version to read at your own pace.  

Limited preview: If a publisher or author has joined our Partner Programme, you'll be able to see a 
few full pages from the book as a preview. You can conduct multiple searches within the book, or 
browse through the available pages (there's a limit to the amount of the book you can view online). 

Snippet view: Clicking on the book result, you'll be taken to the 'About this book' page. If you choose 
to search within the book, for each search term we'll display up to three snippets of text from the 
book, showing your search term in context. You can enter additional searches to help you decide 
whether you've found the right book. As always in Book Search, you'll see links to places where you 
can buy or borrow the book. 

No preview available: For books where we're unable to show you snippets, you'll see an 'About this 
book' page displaying bibliographic information about the book, plus links to help you find it in a 
bookstore or library. 

Where do these books come from?  

The books in Google Books come primarily from two sources: publishers and libraries. 

What can I do once I've found a book I like?  
Browse: Click the forward-ŦŀŎƛƴƎ ŀǊǊƻǿ ǘƻ ōǊƻǿǎŜ ŀǾŀƛƭŀōƭŜ ǇŀƎŜǎΦ LŦ ȅƻǳΩǊŜ ƛƴ ƻƴŜ-page mode, simply 
scroll down to see all available pages. You can also choose to view the book in full-screen mode 
(filling your browser window). 
 
Search within the book: Click on additional search results to see other pages containing your original 
search term, or try a new search within the book. 
 
Buy the book: Click on one of the links to online booksellers to go directly to a page where you can 
buy the book.5 

                                                 
5
 http://books.google.com.au/intl/en/googlebooks/about.html 

http://books.google.com.au/
http://books.google.com.au/intl/en/googlebooks/about.html
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WHY IS A SHIP CALLED ‘SHE’? 
 
 

Those who have been connected with the sea 
and ships are often asked why a ship is referred 
to as “She”. There are many reasons for this:- 

. 

¶ There is always a great deal of bustle 
around her. 

¶ There is usually a gang of men about. 

¶ She has a waist and stays. 

¶ It takes a lot of paint to keep her good 
looking. 

¶ She can be all decked out. 

¶ It takes an experienced man to handle 
her correctly. 

¶ She generally has elegant topsides and 
shows nice lines. 

¶ When coming into port she always 
looks for the buoys. 

¶ It is not the initial expense that breaks 
you, it’s the upkeep. 

 
 

SEARCH ONLINE 
London Lives makes available, in a 
fully digitised and searchable form, 

a wide range of primary sources 
about eighteenth-century London, 
with a particular focus on plebeian 

Londoners. 
 

http://www.londonlives.org 
 

1680 - 1820 
 

UK Royal Naval Service Records  
1853-1923 

Over 680,000 Royal Navy seamen records are now 
available to search and download online. 

 
http://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/documentsonlin

e/royal-navy-service.asp 
 

 

SNIPPETS 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A USEFUL HINT 

 
Glad Oven bags (the ones we use 
to cook chicken in) are inert i.e. 

they are like non acid paper. This 
means you can safely use them 
for storage of old photographs, 

certificates or any other old 
paper documents. 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.londonlives.org/
http://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/documentsonline/royal-navy-service.asp
http://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/documentsonline/royal-navy-service.asp
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A Shorter History of Australia  

 
Geoffrey Blainey  

 
ISBN: 9781741667714  

 
After a lifetime of research and debate on Australian and 
international history, Geoffrey Blainey is well-placed to 
introduce us to the people who have played a part and to 
guide us through the events that have created and shaped 
the Australian identity: the mania for spectator sport; the 
suspicion of the tall poppy; the rivalries of Catholic and 
Protestant; Sydney and Melbourne; new and old 
homelands the conflicts of war abroad and race at home; 
the importance of technology, the recognition of our 
Aboriginal past an native title; the economic booms and 
busts; the successes and failures of the nation. 
 
For this enlarged edition, Blainey has expanded or 
rewritten some of the crucial episodes and added new 
chapters on significant events of recent decades. The final 
ŎƘŀǇǘŜǊ ōƻƭŘƭȅ ŀǎƪǎΥ ǿƘŀǘ ƳŀŘŜ !ǳǎǘǊŀƭƛŀΩǎ ƘƛǎǘƻǊȅ ǎƻ 
distinctive? He shows two decisive factors weaving in and 
out, again and again, over 50,000 years. 
 
 

tǊƻŦŜǎǎƻǊ DŜƻŦŦǊŜȅ .ƭŀƛƴŜȅΩǎ ŦƛǊǎǘ ōƻƻƪ ǿŀǎ ŎƻƳǇƭŜǘŜŘ ǿƘŜƴ ƘŜ ǿŀǎ ƛƴ Ƙƛǎ ŜŀǊƭȅ ǘǿŜƴǘƛŜǎΦ 
Since then he has written another thirty-two. 
For twenty years he was professor of economic history and then Ernest Scott professor of 
history at the University of Melbourne, with a term as professor of Australian Studies at 
Harvard University.  
 
Lƴ bŜǿ ¸ƻǊƪΣ ƛƴ мфууΣ .ƭŀƛƴŜȅ ǊŜŎŜƛǾŜŘ ǘƘŜ ŎŜƭŜōǊŀǘŜŘ .ǊƛǘŀƴƴƛŎŀ tǊƛȊŜ ΨŦƻǊ ŜȄŎŜƭƭŜƴŎŜ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ 
dissemination of knowledge for the benefit of mankindΩΦ 
 

 
EditorΩs Note: This book will enhance your Australian research. 

 
 

Book Review  
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MEMBERS INTERESTS 

 
Surname Given Names Town County/State Country Dates 

(10336) Cheryl Stokes                                                                                                   Email: gumboots@aapt.net.au 

GEDDES George Maitland ? NSW Australia 1800 +/- 

GEDDES John Maitland/Singleton NSW Australia 1833 ς 1911 

GEDDES John Walter 
(aka Walter) 

WŜǊǊȅΩǎ tƭŀƛƴǎΣ 
Walhallow Station 
Caroona, Quirindi 

NSW Australia 1900 ς 1985 

BRADY?(mother of 
John Geddes 

Unknown Unknown Unknown Unknown 1800 +/- 

MATTHEWS Henry/Henricus Unknown Unknown Unknown 1860 +/- 

MATTHEWS Tomas Henry Quirindi/Pialloway NSW Australia 1880 +/- 

MATTHEWS Thelma Grace 
(aka Grace) 

Pialloway, Wingen, 
Bundanoon 

NSW Australia 1907 

SMITH Sarah Blandford NSW Australia 1880 +/- 

SMITH Robert    1860 +/- 

CURRY Charlotte 
Elizabeth 

   1860 +/- 

ROBINSON Eliza (wife of 
Robert Smith) 

Unknown Unknown Unknown 1860 +/- 

REDMAN/READMA
N 

Margaretta WŜǊǊȅΩǎ tƭŀƛƴǎΣ 
Singleton 

NSW AUSTRALIA 1853-1935 

TRATTLES Mary    1830 +/- 

TRATTLES William    1800 +/- 

HEBRON Jane    1800 +/- 

CARLYLE Ada (aka Ellen) Wybong Creek, 
Walhallow Station 

NSW AUSTRALIA 1873 - 1944 

CARLYLE Sarah Blenmore, Scone, 
Walhallow 

NSW AUSTRALIA 1852 ς 1941 

CARLYLE/CARLISLE George    1830 +/- 

? aboriginal Susanna/Jayne  NSW Australia +/- 1821 

RUFFY Mary Unknown Unknown Unknown 1800 +/- 

YORK Henry Unknown Unknown Unknown 1800 +/- 

 

 
 

Contributors 
 

The following members contributed material to this edition of Pigeon House Tidings. Should you wish 
to correspond with them, contact details appear against their names. 
 
(5224)  Marie Bishop .................................................................................. Email: myduchess@internode.on.net 

(10335)  Margaret Magnusson ..................................................................... Email: megmago@yahoo.com.au 

(5240)  Margaret McIntosh ....................................................................... Email: dm.maccas@bigpond.com 

(5236)  Sue McMahon ................................................................................ Email: smmac37@bigpond.com 

(7171)  Margaret Osmond .......................................................................... Email: gomeg@scoastnet.com.au 

 (9321)  Janette SullivanΧΧΧ ...................................................................... Email: janettesullivan@bigpond.com   

 (7271)  Beth Venning ................................................................................. Email: mcbeth@ains.net.au 

(5200)  Gloria Wilks .................................................................................... Email: douglorw@netscape.net.au 

 

mailto:gumboots@aapt.net.au
myduchess@internode.on.net
megmago@yahoo.com.au
dm.maccas@bigpond.com
smmac37@bigpond.com
gomeg@scoastnet.com.au
mailto:janettesullivan@bigpond.com
file:///F:/PHT/mcbeth@ains.net.au
file:///F:/PHT/douglorw@netscape.net.au
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ORDER FORM AND TAX INVOICE 
 

PIONEER REGISTER-PRE 1920 
 

Please use this form if you wish to order the Pioneer Register 
 

/ƻǎǘ ǇŜǊ ōƻƻƪΧΧ Ϸо0 plus $10 postage & handling 
 The price includes GST where appropriate. 

 
 
Number of Books ǊŜǉǳƛǊŜŘΧΧΧ !Ƴƻǳƴǘ ƻŦ tŀȅƳŜƴǘ ŜƴŎƭƻǎŜŘΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΦ 

 
Name   ΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧ 
 
Mailing Address ΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧ 

 
ΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΦ 

 
Phone or email address . ΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΦ 
     

Please make payment by Cheque or Money Order 
 

 
Send completed form and payment to: 
 

Pioneer Register 
Milton Ulladulla Family History Society Inc. 
PO Box 619  
Ulladulla NSW 2539 Australia 

 
 
For further details please contact: 
President: Margaret Hope  02 4454 1681 
Secretary: Beth Venning     02 4455 1915 
 
 

 
 

Office Use 
 
 wŜŎŜƛǇǘ bǳƳōŜǊΥ ΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧ 
 .ƻƻƪόǎύ {ŜƴǘΥ ΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΦ 
 
 {ƛƎƴŀǘǳǊŜΥ ΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧ 
 
 


